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FAA SOLICITATION DTFA01-01-R-00010

AMENDMENT 4

The FAA hereby issues Amendment 4 to FAA solicitation DTFA01-01-R-00010, for the FAA’s Next Generation Messaging System (NexGen) requirement.  The solicitation, as previously amended, is hereby revised to implement the following changes:  

1.    Section H.20, Labor Category Description/Requirements, has been amended to include descriptions for one additional labor category:  “System Operator.” The Section H that is posted at the FAA Contract Opportunities Homepage has been modified to reflect the description as follows:  

System Operator

The System Operator monitors and supports computer processing. Coordinates input, output, and file media. Distributes output and controls computer operation which may be mainframe, mini, or client/server based.

This position requires a minimum of three years experience, three (3) of which shall be within the last five (5) years in operating a large-scale computer system or a multi-server local area network. Must demonstrate sufficient knowledge of programming to understand how programs use computer hardware. An Associate Degree in Computer Science, Information Systems, Engineering, Business, or other related discipline is required.  

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FOR AMENDMENT 4 TO

FAA SOLICITATION DTFA01-01-R-00010

1.  Is e-mail acceptable for submission of the past performance forms?

FAA RESPONSE:  E-mail submission of past performance forms is acceptable.  All e-mails must be submitted to Jim.McNulty@faa.gov. 

2.  Section L.1(c)

Will the Government consider allowing electronic delivery on CD-ROM in lieu of diskettes, given the potential size of the files, including graphics? 

FAA RESPONSE:  The Government will allow electronic delivery on CD-ROM in lieu of diskettes.  

3. Given that Attachment J-11 is to be completed and submitted as Book I of the Technical Volume, does that attachment need to be reformatted to meet the submission requirements in Section L (i.e., margins, font size, and line spacing)? Currently, Attachment J-11 is formatted in single-spaced Arial 8- point type on landscape pages, with half-inch margins left, right, and bottom, .75 inch top margin. 
FAA RESPONSE:  The government does not require that attachment J-11 be reformatted to meet the submission requirements in Section L.  
Section L.1(f)

4. Will the Government allow single-spaced tables?  

FAA RESPONSE:  Yes.  
5.  Are 11x17 foldouts (allowable per Section L of the RFP) considered to be 1 page or 2?

FAA RESPONSE:  Foldouts will be considered to be one page.  
Section L.1(g)

6.  Past Experience is limited to 10 pages. Following the specified format, almost three-quarters of a page will be used to respond to the required information in L8.2.3.2.(c). Given that this section will be submitted separately from the rest of the proposal, will the Government consider allowing offerors to present this information in single-spaced table format to allow for providing the additional information required by Sections A and B on a single page?  

FAA RESPONSE:  The government considers such unnecessary since L.7(g) includes the “Previous contracts list required per Volume III” in the list of items excluded from the page count.  

Sections L.5; M.1

7.  Since the Government will perform a down-select of bidders after receiving Past Experience submissions, does the Government intend to inform those offereros who were eliminated from the bidding after down-select?

FAA RESPONSE:  L.5 and M.1 indicate that the government “may” make a down-selection.  The government reserves the right to notify offerors of such down-select actions at the time of contract award announcement.  The government’s schedule for contract award and implementation of NexGen may preclude down-select notification until after contract award announcement.  
Section L.8.2.1.1, Section I-Executive Summary

8.  The RFP states the the “offeror is allowed to expand this volume (within the constraints of the overall page limitation for the technical proposal volume)…” Given that the Technical Volume does not have an overall page limitation, will the Government allow a 10-page Executive Summary, in addition to Books I-X, within the Technical Volume? 

FAA RESPONSE:  Yes.  
Section L.8.2.1.2.2.5.4

9. What, if any, non-Wintel portable devices are currently used by the FAA to access mail data?  

FAA RESPONSE:  The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.  
10.  Are any particular devices expected to be implemented in, or are currently under evaluation by, the FAA?

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
Section L.8.2.1.2.2.6.1

11.  What is the FAA's current Antivirus solution?

 FAA RESPONSE:  The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
Section L.8.2.1.2.2.8

12. What is the FAA's current backup solution?  

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
13. Which brand(s), product(s), and software version(s) are in place?  

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
14.  What hardware and media-type(s) are in use?

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
15.  What is the per-site backup capacity?

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
16. What are the Agency's backup policies (including frequency of backup), and what are the maintenance, archival, and off-site storage requirements?  

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
Section L.8.2.1.2.2.10

17. What is the agency’s current network management solution?  What protocols, software and hardware are in use?  

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
18.  What tools are used for performance monitoring?

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
Section L.8.2.1.2.2.10.5

19.  What custom reports are generated in the current environment?  Are there any specific reporting requirements?

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
Section L.8.2.3.2, Subfactor 2: Past Experience

20.  This offereror performed a migration of a similar nature internally. Will the Government permit this internal experience to be used in the Past Experience section as one of the 10 contract summaries?

FAA RESPONSE:  Yes, the government will permit this “internal” experience to be used in the Past Experience section as one of the previous contracts  listing (of 10 contracts).  However, please note that Section L.8.2.3.3, requires that offerors have past performance data submitted from the sources cited in the “previous contracts listing.”  The government reserves the right to not consider any “past performance” data submitted from such a source (the actual offeror or another portion/segment of the actual offeror’s company).  The government considers that such past performance data could be considered biased and that it is a conflict of interest to provide past performance data on one’s own company (or another portion/segment of one’s own company).  
21.  This offeror understands that the Government has requested Past Experience summaries from the Prime Contractor only. However, we respectfully ask the Government reconsider, as we have teamed with subcontractors whose past experience

FAA RESPONSE:  Again, the government respectfully rejects the suggestion.  
22.  Specification 3.3.2.1.1:  Paragraph ‘b’ states "Provide remote access hardware that concurrently supports 10% of the sit user base at individually connected speeds up to 56Kb”.  Can existing RAS servers throughout FAA be used to meet this requirement, or does the Government intend for the Offeror to propose a largescale hardware solution (including installation of new phone lines) that replaces the existing RAS servers.  Please clarify this requirement.  

FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
23. Specification 3.3.2.1.2:  Paragraph ‘a’ states "Provide like server equipment make and model to each Stage II location".  Does this restrict the Offeror to using one specific server (such as a Dell PowerEdge 6450 with 2GB RAM and 90GB hard drive capacity) in all Stage II locations, or can various servers be used in Stage II as long as they are in the same “family” (i.e., Dell PowerEdge)?  If the statement limits the Stage II hardware to only the server “family”, may the Offeror propose sub-CLINs for CLIN 0003b with Stage II unit prices for different numbers of users?
FAA RESPONSE: The government is reviewing the question to decide whether or not a specific response will be provided via future amendment.
24. In regards to provisions H.5 and H.7, although this offeror recognizes and agrees that we will not be permitted to use, in any unauthorized manner, specific, tangible and confidential information disclosed by FAA, we request that language be added to the confidentiality provisions which recognizes that our employees, during the course of the NexGen contract, may further develop their knowledge, skills, and experience as it relates to information technology.  This is because we would like to ensure that the subsequent use by such employees of such general knowledge, skills, and experience in the ordinary course of business for either party does not constitute a breach of this Agreement.    Consequently, would FAA be willing to add the following language (which is very similar to the language in our agreement with the U.S. Mint)?  The language states:  

"Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this agreement, the Recipient may disclose, publish, disseminate, and use the ideas, concepts, know-how and techniques, related to the Recipients business activities, which are in the Discloser's Information and retained in the memories of Recipient's employees who have had access to the Information under this Agreement.

FAA RESPONSE:  The government respectfully declines to incorporate the suggested language in the RFP.  

25.  Would FAA consider incorporating a limitation of liability provision into the solicitation?  This offeror recognizes that as a responsible contractor, we must offer FAA appropriate remedies in the event that we do not perform as promised.  For example in Section 2.28 of our GSA Schedule, we have agreed to accept unlimited liability for bodily injury/property damage and liability for other, actual direct damages up to the value of the product or service that is the subject of the Government's claim (with a floor of $100,000 if the product or service is valued at less than $100,000).  Moreover, for economic, direct damage claims related to services or products subject to recurring charges (e.g., monthly fees), we are liable for up to 12 months of charges.   This liability for direct economic damages, in effect, permits customers such as FAA to recover the cost of securing substitute performance in appropriate circumstances while at the same time allowing THIS OFFEROR to manage contract risk.  Lastly, as is customary in the information technology industry and as acknowledged in Part 12 of the Federal Acquisition Regulations, THIS OFFEROR requests that we be allowed to disclaim liability for consequential damages and third party damages and third party claims unrelated to patent or copyright issues.

It should be noted that a market survey of the information technology industry recently performed by the Department of Navy revealed that liability clauses were customary industry practice and thus, they inserted a provision in their solicitation to provide intranet services to the Navy and Marine Corps.  It should also be noted that THIS OFFEROR's federal customers routinely accept THIS OFFEROR's liability provision. 

FAA RESPONSE:  The government respectfully declines to incorporate the suggested language in the RFP.  
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